Public Document Pack

AGENDA
NOTE: In the case of non-members, this agenda is for information only

Committee

-

STANDARDS COMMITTEE

Date & Time

-

Tuesday, 21st February, 2012 at 2.15 pm

Venue

-

Norfolk Room, Conference Suite, Elizabeth
House, Walpole Loke, Dereham

Members of the Committee requiring further information, or with specific
questions, are asked to raise these with the appropriate officer at least two
working days before the meeting. If the information requested is available,
this will be provided, and reported to Committee.
Committee Members
Mr. M. Eveling JP (Independent)(Chairman)
Mrs. S.M. Matthews (Breckland)
Mr. B. Rayner (Parish)
Mr. G. Ridgway (Independent)

Mr. F. Sharpe (Breckland)
Mrs J. R. Smith (Parish)
Mr. A. D. Sommerville CPM (Parish)
Mr. D. Williams JP (Breckland)

Persons attending the meeting are
requested to turn off mobile telephones
Member Services
Elizabeth House, Walpole Loke,
Dereham Norfolk, NR19 1EE
Date: Monday, 13 February 2012

Please ask for Helen McAleer: Telephone (01362) 656381
e-mail: helen.mcaleer@breckland.gov.uk

Standards Committee
21 February 2012
PART A
ITEMS OPEN TO THE PUBLIC

Page(s)
herewith

1.

MINUTES

1-6

To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 3 January 2012.
2.

APOLOGIES
To receive apologies for absence.

3.

URGENT BUSINESS
To note whether the Chairman proposes to accept any item as urgent
business pursuant to Section 100(B)(4)(b) of the Local Government Act
1972.

4.

DECLARATION OF INTEREST
Members are asked at this stage to declare any interests that they may have
in any of the following items on the agenda. The Members’ Code of Conduct
requires that declarations include the nature of the interest and whether it is a
personal or prejudicial interest.

5.

NON-MEMBERS WISHING TO ADDRESS THE MEETING
To note the names of any non-members wishing to address the meeting.

6.

DISPENSATION REQUEST - WEASENHAM ALL SAINTS PARISH
COUNCIL

7 - 11

To consider a request from Weasenham All Saints Parish Council for a
dispensation.
7.

DRAFT TIMETABLE

12

To consider a draft timetable for implementation of the new Standards
system.
8.

NEW CODE

13 - 15

The Committee is asked to consider the attached draft Code and to make
recommendations to refer to Cabinet for their views.
9.

NEW STANDARDS COMMITTEE COMPOSITION/FUNCTION
To consider what form the Standards function at Breckland should take under
the new system and to make recommendations to refer to Cabinet for their
views.

10.

INDEPENDENT PERSON
A draft advertisement and draft Notes for Applicants are attached for the
Committee’s comments. Members are asked to agree a procedure for
interviewing prospective candidates.

16 - 17

Standards Committee
21 February 2012
Page(s)
herewith

11.

NEW REGISTER OF INTERESTS : FOR INFORMATION
A short overview is attached.

12.

ITEMS FOR FUTURE AGENDAS (STANDING ITEM)
To note items for inclusion on future agendas.

13.

NEXT MEETING
To note the date of the next meeting on 3 April 2012.

18

Agenda Item 1
BRECKLAND COUNCIL
At a Meeting of the
STANDARDS COMMITTEE
Held on Tuesday, 3 January 2012 at 2.15 pm in
Norfolk Room, Conference Suite, Elizabeth House, Walpole Loke, Dereham
PRESENT
Mr A D Sommerville CPM
Mrs J R Smith JP
Mr M.D. Eveling JP
Mrs S.M. Matthews

Mr B.D Rayner
Mr G. Ridgway
Mr F.J. Sharpe
Mr D.R. Williams JP

Also Present
Mr S. Askew
In Attendance
Susan Allen
John Chinnery
Helen McAleer

-

Standards Officer
Solicitor & Standards Consultant
Senior Committee Officer
Action By

1/12 MINUTES (AGENDA ITEM 1)
It was noted that the paragraph on page three commencing ‘A Member
suggested…’, should read “… in view of the existing partnership… “.
Subject to that amendment, the Minutes of the meeting held on 22
November 2011 were confirmed as a correct record and signed by the
Chairman.
2/12 APOLOGIES (AGENDA ITEM 2)
None.
3/12 URGENT BUSINESS (AGENDA ITEM 3)
None.
4/12 DECLARATION OF INTEREST (AGENDA ITEM 4)
No declarations were made.
5/12 NON-MEMBERS WISHING TO ADDRESS THE MEETING (AGENDA
ITEM 5)
Mr Askew, Executive Member for Finance and Democratic Services, was
welcomed to the meeting.
6/12 THE NEW STANDARDS REGIME AND CODE OF CONDUCT (AGENDA
ITEM 6)
The Solicitor advised Members that the timetable for implementing the new
regime had been extended to 1 July 2012. However, Standards for
1

1

Standards Committee
3 January 2012
Action By

England would cease to exist from 31 January 2012.
In view of the change to the timetable it was RECOMMENDED TO
COUNCIL that the terms of office of the existing Independent and Parish
Members of the Standards Committee be extended until 30 June 2012, plus
the transitional period to dispose of existing complaints (expected to be two
months).
The Solicitor explained the background to the new system and the
requirements of any new Code. He asked for Members’ views on the
content and wording of the existing Code. No draft Codes were yet
available, but Members had the opportunity to suggest amendments for the
new Code.
Mr Askew thought that there should be a uniform system and Code of
Conduct around the County at least. He understood that the current system
was cumbersome and that the new system needed to be simpler. As there
was currently no information available on what other authorities were
intending to do he could not see any way forward, unless the Committee
were ready to act as ‘trail blazers’.
The Chairman explained that the Committee wanted to help to prepare
people for the changes, but did not want to give out any wrong information.
They needed a political steer from the Executive.
Mrs Matthews did not think that it was necessary to wait for others to make
their minds up. If the Council decided what it wanted a draft could be
prepared and then could be offered to others.
Mr Askew agreed with that idea but did not want to do unnecessary work if
the legislation might change it.
Mr Williams explained that it was not criminality that they were discussing,
but the behaviour of Councillors at meetings, etc. He felt that the Council
had a good team on the Standards Committee that should be retained. He
did not think that the same system should apply to all, as different tiers of
Local Government had different ways of managing things.
Members were asked for their views on going forward alone with draft
proposals and the majority were in favour of doing so. Concerns were
raised about Town and Parish Councillors not being required to sign up to
the same Code as District Councillors.
It was suggested that the Chairmen and Vice-Chairmen of all the Town and
Parish Councils should be invited to a meeting (or possibly a Forum) so that
the changes could be explained. For example, the District Council would
still be responsible for investigating complaints against Town and Parish
Councillors but then the complaints would be passed back to the Town or
Parish Council for them to deal with.
There was a debate in which Members put forward various suggestions.
The key issues which emerged were:
With regard to the existing system and Code:
• The existing Code was good and worked well, it was the system that
2

2

Standards Committee
3 January 2012
Action By

needed to be streamlined
• Complaints needed to be dealt with more quickly
• New Guidelines on dealing with vexatious and persistent
complainants would help to prevent any new system from being
devalued
• Members felt strongly that the Town and Parish Councils should be
encouraged to sign up to the same system and Code as the District
Council
• The wording in the Code about interests needed to be simplified
• Failure to declare a pecuniary interest would become a criminal
offence and this needed to be made clear to all Councillors
• A clear framework should be provided to enable any Councillor to
determine if they had an interest
• The Officers should proceed to draft a new Code for Breckland based
on the existing statutory Code.
With regard to the Standards Committee itself:
The Solicitor suggested that there were five options:
1. a Breckland Council Standards Committee
2. another Committee of the Council to take on Standards’
responsibilities
3. a Joint Standards Committee with Town/Parish Councils
4. a Joint Standards Committee for the whole of Norfolk
5. a Joint Standards Committee with South Holland District Council
He asked Members for their views and most were keen to retain a
Breckland Council Standards Committee. Mr Sharpe said he could not
support retaining the Committee if the workload decreased considerably
and Mrs Matthews suggested that future meetings could be held on an adhoc basis, as and when required.
Mrs Smith, as the newest Parish Member, had found the Committee very
useful and thought it would be a sad day if the parishes were not involved.
Mr Sommerville felt that guidance was needed on what the Council
proposed. On any future Standards Committee District Councillors would
be the only voting Members, but he also felt that Parish Councils needed to
be involved. He thought it was important to note that the role of the
Independent Person was different from that of the current Independent
Members. He felt it would be a great loss if they could not be Members of
the Committee.
Mr Ridgway did not feel that the time was right to consider sharing with
another authority, but if workloads fell away that could change. He thought
that any future Committee should not be too large and should maintain a
separate identity.
The Chairman thought that if the Council agreed with the suggested
framework, the current format should continue for the rest of 2012/13 and
when the workload was better understood, should be re-assessed at a
future Council meeting.
The Chairman felt there was a clash between what the Committee saw as
the way forward and what the Act required. He asked the Solicitor if it
3

3

Standards Committee
3 January 2012
Action By

would be possible for the Standards Committee to continue in its current
format under the new legislation and was advised that it could, but that only
District Councillors would be voting Members.
Mr Sommerville said that clarification was needed about Independent
Persons and the Solicitor agreed that it was not clear if current Independent
Members could become Independent Persons. On the face of it they could
not – but that was a matter for legal debate.
The Chairman asked if Independent and Parish Members would be on the
Committee in an advisory capacity only and the Solicitor agreed that would
be the case unless there was a Joint Parish Council and District Council
Committee. In that case, powers could be delegated to Parish Councillors
to be voting Members. The Town and Parish Councils could be asked if
they would contemplate delegating powers for a joint committee.
Mr Sommerville pointed out that a lot of Parish Councils would not
understand what they were being asked.
The Chairman felt that a clear political steer was needed before the Parish
Councils were approached.
With regard to dealing with misconduct complaints:
The Solicitor suggested that Officers could draft new procedures and he
asked for comments about the current system.
The Chairman noted that there were several Magistrates on the Committee
and they were not used to having to deal with matters in three stages. He
suggested that the new system should enable matters to be dealt with at
one meeting.
The Solicitor thought that one possible way forward and to cut down on time
and costs would be to have the Monitoring Officer and the Chairman of the
Standards Committee look at all complaints and decide:
1. Which were not worth taking forward
2. The best way of dealing with those that were
3. In more complicated cases, send the matter for further investigation
before it was put to the Committee
4. Suggest conciliation, without the need for a Hearing
The Chairman liked the ideas but was concerned that public perception
might be damaged and suggested that someone more independent than
the Chairman should be involved.
Mr Williams agreed and said that a third person, either a Town/Parish
Councillor or an Independent Member would give the procedure more
legitimacy.
The Chairman said that the details would need to be worked out further
down the line, currently it was the framework that needed to be agreed.
Mr Rayner suggested that the decisions made on how to handle complaints
received should be reported to the next Standards Committee for
assessment.
4

4

Standards Committee
3 January 2012
Action By

The Standards Officer advised that she had already made a start on
drafting procedures for dealing with complaints and these would be Mrs Allen
circulated before the next meeting.
Mr Sommerville asked who would be responsible for informing the police
about possible criminal breaches. He thought that should form part of the
procedure.
With regard to an Independent Person
Members indicated that they would be in favour of having two Independent
Persons.
It was AGREED that papers should be drafted to advertise the vacancies
Mrs Allen /
as it would take three months to complete the process of recruitment. The Mr Chinnery
draft would be presented to the next meeting.
Mr Sommerville pointed out that there was nothing in the Localism Act to
set the criteria for who might apply.
With regard to Disclosure of Interest
The new Act only covered disclosure of pecuniary interests and the Solicitor
asked Members if they considered that a new Standing Order should
require the withdrawal of Members from meetings when they had an
interest.
Under the new legislation:
• If a Member had registered an interest they would not be required to
declare it at a meeting or to leave the room – did the Council want to
have a Standing Order requiring withdrawal?
• The new Legislation did not allow for Members to declare a
pecuniary interest and then to speak at a meeting where public
speaking was allowed before departing.
Mr Sharpe felt that Members should be required to declare interests at
meetings before leaving. It would also be in the public interest as members
of the public would not necessarily know what interests were included on a
Member’s register.
Mrs Matthews thought that the system needed to allow for a Member with
an interest to be questioned by other Members if their knowledge would add
value to the debate. The Solicitor advised that when they had a pecuniary
interest that would not be possible but there might be a way to permit it for
other interests.
Mr Ridgway proposed that any draft proposals should deal with declaring
non-pecuniary interests.
With regard to the Register of Interests
The Solicitor advised that the Council would be required to maintain and
publish the Register on its website. Parish Councils would also be required
to publish their Register on their website if they had one. More details
5

5

Standards Committee
3 January 2012
Action By

about that and the granting of dispensations would be presented to the next
meeting.
With regard to Transitional Arrangements
From 1 July 2012 there would be two months in which to clear outstanding
complaints. From 1 July the power to suspend a Councillor would be
removed as would the right of appeal.
It was AGREED that the Chairmen and Vice-Chairman of all the Town and
Parish Councils should be offered training to inform them of the new
procedures.
The Standards Officer suggested that the Council could offer to put the
Town and Parish Council’s Register of Interests on the web (via a link from
Breckland Council’s website).
The Chairman thanked the Solicitor for guiding the Committee through the
different aspects of the new Legislation and he thanked the Executive
Member for attending.
7/12 ITEMS FOR FUTURE AGENDAS (STANDING ITEM)(AGENDA ITEM 7)
No other items were put forward.
8/12 NEXT MEETING (AGENDA ITEM 8)
The arrangements for the next meeting on 21 February 2012 were noted.

The meeting closed at 3.45 pm

CHAIRMAN

6

6

Agenda Item 6

BRECKLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL
Report of Monitoring Officer
To: Standards Committee – 21st February, 2012
(Author: Susan Allen – Standards Officer)
Subject: Application for Dispensation – Weasenham All Saints Parish Council
Purpose: The Committee is asked to consider the application for a dispensation from
Weasenham All Saints Parish Council as detailed in the attached letter at Appendix A.
Recommendation(s):
It is recommended that the Committee:
Grants a dispensation to the parish councillors of Weasenham All Saints Parish
Council to speak and vote to ensure the smooth running of Weasenham All Saints
Parish Council.

1.

INTRODUCTION

1.1

Background

1.1.1

Regulations came into force on 15th June, 2009 entitled The Standards Committee
(Further Provisions) (England) Regulations 2009 (S.I. 2009 No. 1255).

1.1.2

These Regulations prescribe the circumstances in which the Standards Committee
may grant dispensations to Breckland members and parish and town councillors in
the Breckland area. If a member acts in accordance with the grant of such a
dispensation, any participation in business prohibited by the mandatory provisions of
the Model Codes of Conduct is not a failure to comply with the authority’s Code.
These Regulations refer to the circumstance where a member, or more usually a
number of members, finds they are in a position where they have to declare a
prejudicial interest under the Code of Conduct and leave the room. In the
circumstances described in the Regulations, those members might be able to obtain
a dispensation (i.e. permission) from a Standards Committee to stay in the meeting
after declaring the interest and either just speak, or speak and vote according to any
dispensation granted.

1.1.3

The Regulations state that a Standards Committee may grant a dispensation to a
member or co-opted member of an authority in the following circumstances:
a)

because the number of members of the authority prohibited from voting on
the business of the authority a meeting exceeds 50% of those members that,
but for the granting of any dispensations relating to that business, would
otherwise be entitled to vote on that business; or

b)

the number of members prohibited from voting on the business of the
authority at a meeting would, but for the granting of any dispensations relating
to that business, upset the political balance of that meeting to such an extent
as to prejudice the outcome of the voting in that meeting.

7

1.2

Issues

1.2.1

Weasenham All Saints Parish Council have sent in a request for a dispensation for
the parish councillors on Weasenham All Saints Parish Council in connection with
the charities mentioned in the letter at Appendix A.

1.2.2

The dispensation sought is to speak and vote. However, the Committee do not have
to grant dispensations for both, and can decide not to grant the request at all. The
Regulations state that the Committee must decide whether it is “appropriate” to grant
the request. Previous guidance states:
“Clearly there is a difference between being eligible to apply for a dispensation and it
being appropriate for that dispensation to be granted. The committee will need to
balance the prejudicial interest of the member seeking the dispensation to vote on an
item of business, against the potential effect on the outcome of the vote if the
member is unable to do so.”

1.3

Options

1.3.1

To refuse to grant a dispensation to Weasenham All Saints Parish Council
councillors.

1.3.2

To grant a dispensation to Weasenham All Saints Parish Council councillors.

1.4
1.4.1

Reasons for recommendation
To ensure that Weasenham All Saints Parish can make decisions on matters
regarding the charities mentioned in the letter at Appendix A it is recommended that
Option 1.3.2 above is agreed.

2.

IMPLICATIONS

2.1

Risk
I have completed the Risk Management questionnaire and this report does not require
a risk assessment because the issues covered by the recommendations are not
significant in terms of risk.

2.2

Financial
None.

2.3

Legal
None.

2.4

Equality and Diversity
a)
b)
c)
d)
e)
f)

Equalities: There are no Equalities implications.
Section 17, Crime & Disorder Act 1998: None
Section 40, Natural Environment & Rural Communities Act 2006: None
Human Resources: None
Human Rights: None.
Other: [e.g. Children’s Act 2004] None

8

3.
7.1

4.

Alignment to Council Priorities
Your Council, Your Services:
a)
Strengthen community consultation and involvement.
b)
Involve people in the design and delivery of services which meet their needs.
Wards/Communities Affected

4.1 Weasenham All Saints Parish Council.

Background papers:- None
___________________________________________________________________
Lead Contact Officer
Name/Post: Victoria Thomson
Telephone Number: 01362 656206
Email: vicky.thomson@breckland-sholland.gov.uk
Appendices attached to this report:
Application for Dispensation Letter

9

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

10

th

12

10 July

th

[STANDARDS]

5 July

th

COUNCIL

1ST JULY

19th June

CABINET

24th May (6.30pm)

[?RESIDUAL]

NEW STANDARDS
REGIME STARTS

Approval

COUNCIL

15th May

(Confirm
recommendation to
Council?)

Rep Cabinet view ?recommend draft

STANDARDS

8 May

th

CABINET

12th April

COUNCIL

3 or 17 April

rd

STANDARDS

27 March

th

CABINET

23 February/(9th March)

COUNCIL

21 February

Cabinet view

Draft Code (JSC)

STANDARDS

st

NEW CODE

COMMITTEE/COUNCIL

Approval

(Confirm
recommendation to
Council?)

Confirm
recommendation to
Council

Cabinet view

Ask for
recommendation to go
to Cabinet

STANDARDS
COMMITTEE

(Long stop approval)

Appointment

Recommendation to
Council of 2 nominees

Beginning May)

(end April

Sub-Committee
Interviews

Draft Advert (SA)

INDEPENDENT
PERSON

Approval

Stand deferred

Recommendation to
Council

(For view, if required)

Draft

NEW STANDING
ORDER

(Long stop approval)

Approval (if possible)

Recommendation to Council

Draft

Register (info) (JSC)

[SA: drafting for discussion]

Approve Register

Register

(1) Draft Register

Parish Council
Meeting/Newsletter

OTHER MATTERS –
REGISTER

Draft 2 – 08.02.12

PROCEDURES – COMPLAINTS
INC. DISPENSATIONS

Breckland Council New Standards System Timetable

Agenda Item 7

Agenda Item 8

13

14

15

Agenda Item 10
BRECKLAND COUNCIL IS LOOKING TO APPOINT TWO
INDEPENDENT PERSONS

Every authority has a duty to promote and maintain high standards of conduct by elected
and co-opted members of the authority and is required to adopt a Code of Conduct, which
applies to members and co-opted member when acting in their capacity as a member or coopted member.
The Localism Act 2011 requires that an authority must have in place arrangements under
which allegations into alleged breaches of the Code of Conduct can be investigated and
decisions on the allegations made. In the case of Breckland Council, this also applies to
allegations in respect of parish and town councillors in the Breckland area.
Any arrangements put in place must include the provision for the appointment of at least one
Independent Person whose functions will include:
being consulted before the authority takes a decision to investigate any allegation.
may be consulted by a member of the authority against whom an allegation has been
made.
may be consulted by a parish councillor against whom an allegation has been made.
Breckland Council is looking to appoint two Independent Persons to assist with these
arrangements, to be effective from 1st July, 2012. You will reside or work in Breckland, and
have relevant experience.
The Localism Act prevents a person from being appointed an independent person if they are
currently a member, co-opted member or officer of Breckland Council or any parish/town
council within the Breckland Council area or have been within the least five years, or you are
a relative or close friend or such a person.
Training will be given.
If you are interested in applying and would like an application form and further details please
contact Mrs. S. Allen, Standards Officer, Breckland Council, Democratic Services, Elizabeth
House, Walpole Loke, Dereham, Norfolk, NR19 1EE, telephone 01362 656870, alternatively
e-mail: standards@breckland.gov.uk. Please quote SAA/Localism/Independent Person.
Closing date for receipt of applications is Monday 9th April, 2012.

16

17

Agenda Item 11

18

